Public Document Pack

TONBRIDGE & MALLING
BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE SERVICES

Gibson Building
Chief Executive Gibson Drive
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA Kings Hill, West Malling
Kent ME19 4L.Z
West Malling (01732) 844522

NB - This agenda contains proposals, Contact: Democratice Services
recommendations and options. These do committee.services@tmbc.gov.uk
not represent Council policy or decisions
until they have received proper
consideration through the full decision
making process.

27 October 2020

To: MEMBERS OF THE AREA 2 PLANNING COMMITTEE
(Copies to all Members of the Council)

Dear Sir/Madam

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Area 2 Planning Committee to be held
online via Microsoft Teams on Wednesday, 4th November, 2020 commencing at 7.30 pm.
Information on how to observe the meeting will be published on the Council’s website.
Deposited plans can be viewed online by using Public Access.

Yours faithfully
JULIE BEILBY

Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART 1 - PUBLIC

1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

Members in any doubt about such declarations are advised to contact Legal or
Democratic Services in advance of the meeting


http://www.tmbc.gov.uk/view-planning-applications

Minutes 5-8

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of Area 2 Planning
Committee held on 27 May, 2020

Decisions to be taken by the Committee

Development Control 9-12
Introduction and Glossary

TM/19/01067/FL - Scarbutts and Winsor Works, London Road, 13 -50
Addington

Redevelopment of the site to provide 10x detached dwelling houses with
associated parking, turning, landscaping and improvements to the access

Urgent Items

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Matters for consideration in Private

Exclusion of Press and Public 51-52

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

PART 2 - PRIVATE

Urgent Items

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.



MEMBERSHIP

Cllr H S Rogers (Chairman)
Cllr B J Luker (Vice-Chairman)

Clir Mrs J A Anderson ClirLJ O'Toole
Clir R P Betts Cllr W E Palmer
Clir C Brown Cllr J L Sergison
Clir M A Coffin Clir T B Shaw

Clir S A Hudson Cllr N G Stapleton
Clir Mrs F A Kemp Clir K B Tanner
Clir Mrs C B Langridge Cllir M Taylor

Cllr P J Montague



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

AREA 2 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 27th May, 2020

Present: Clr H S Rogers (Chairman), Clir B JLuker (Vice-Chairman),
Cllr Mrs J A Anderson, Clir R P Betts, Cllr C Brown, Clir M A Coffin,
Clir  SAHudson, Clr MrsFAKemp, Clr P JMontague,
Clir LJ O'Toole, Clir W E Palmer, Clir JL Sergison, Clir T B Shaw,
Clir N G Stapleton, Clir K B Tanner and Clir M Taylor

Councillors V M C Branson, R W Dalton, D A S Davis, N J Heslop
and D Lettington were also present pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule No 15.21.

An apology for absence was received from Councillor
Mrs C B Langridge

PART 1 - PUBLIC

AP2 20/7 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the
Code of Conduct.

AP2 20/8 MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Area 2 Planning
Committee held on 22 January 2020 be approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PART 3 OF THE CONSTITUTION
(RESPONSIBILITY FOR COUNCIL FUNCTIONS)

AP220/9 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Decisions were taken on the following applications subject to the pre-
requisites, informatives, conditions or reasons for refusal set out in the
report of the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health or
in the variations indicated below. Any supplementary reports were
circulated in advance of the meeting and published on the website.

Members of the public addressed the meeting where the required notice
had been given and their comments were taken into account by the
Committee when determining the application. Speakers are listed under
the relevant planning application shown below.

AP Page 5



AREA 2 PLANNING COMMITTEE 27 May 2020

AP2 20/10 (A) TM/19/02842/FL AND (B) TM/19/02843/LB - IGHTHAM MOTE,

AP 2

MOTE ROAD, IVY HATCH, SEVENOAKS

(A)  Construction of a relocated car park in the lower section of the
field to the east of the Walled Garden and the existing parking area; the
restoration of the North Drive, the removal of the temporary Visitor
Reception building, the reinstatement of the Walled Garden and the
erection of a replacement Visitor Reception and Shop, Glasshouse and
Bothy within the restored Walled Garden together with associated
landscaping and drainage works; and

(B) Listed Building Application: construction of a relocated car park in
the lower section of the field to the east of the Walled Garden and the
existing parking area; the restoration of the North Drive, the removal of
the temporary Visitor Reception building, the reinstatement of the Walled
Garden and the erection of a replacement Visitor Reception and Shop,
Glasshouse and Bothy within the restored Walled Garden together with
associated landscaping and drainage works at Ightham Mote, Mote
Road, vy Hatch, Sevenoaks.

RESOLVED: That

In respect of application (A) TM/19/02842/FL planning permission be
REFUSED for the following reason:-

1. The proposed development insofar as it relates to the new car park,
by virtue of its overall scale, siting and layout amounts to inappropriate
development which is harmful by definition and also causes material
harm to openness and further planning harm to the localised landscape
which is designated as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and
which cannot be adequately mitigated. The Local Planning Authority
does not consider that the wider scheme that would be derived from the
provision of the new car parks would result in benefits that would clearly
outweigh those identified harms in totality. As such, the proposed
development is contrary to the requirements of adopted policies CP3
and CP7 of the Tonbridge and Malling Borough Local Plan and
paragraphs 143, 144, 145, 146 and 172 of the National Planning Policy
Framework 2019.

In respect of application (B) TM/19/02843/LB Listed Building Consent be
REFUSED for the following reason:-

1. The proposed development necessitates works to the cluster of Grade
| and Grade Il Listed Buildings which form part of Ightham Mote and
which, in the absence of any acceptable associated development, are
not justified which is contrary to paragraph 198 of the National Planning
Policy Framework 2019.

Page 6



AREA 2 PLANNING COMMITTEE 27 May 2020

AP2 20/11

AP 3

[Speakers: Mr N Tyler of Shipbourne Parish Council addressed the
committee via video-conferencing; Mr L Henry, Mrs S Berkeley,
Ms J Austin, Ms A Farr, Mr D Luther, Mr A Rigney, Mr D Flint,
Mrs J Flint, Ms Z Templeman Young on behalf of Prof. C Young,
Ms C Templeman, Mrs D Champion, Mr C Killick, Mr G Berkeley,
Mr N Davey and Mr T Champion (members of the public) addressed the
committee via video-conferencing; written statements were read out by
the Democratic Services Officer on behalf of Mr R Bate, Ms L Pearson,
Ms K Davey and Mr R Willingham (members of the public); and video
statements, provided by Ms E Hawkes (Agent) and Ms B Gillow on
behalf of the National Trust (Applicant) in advance of the meeting, were
presented to the committee]

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no items considered in private.

The meeting ended at 11.22 pm

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES

Report of the Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Part | — Public
Section A — For Decision

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

In accordance with the Local Government Access to Information Act 1985 and the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended), copies of background papers, including
representations in respect of applications to be determined at the meeting, are available
for inspection at Planning Services, Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill from 08.30
hrs until 17.00 hrs on the five working days which precede the date of this meeting.

Members are invited to inspect the full text of representations received prior to the
commencement of the meeting.

Local residents’ consultations and responses are set out in an abbreviated format
meaning: (number of letters despatched/number raising no objection (X)/raising objection
(R)/in support (S)).

All applications may be determined by this Committee unless (a) the decision would be in
fundamental conflict with the plans and strategies which together comprise the
Development Plan; or (b) in order to comply with Rule 15.24 of the Council and Committee
Procedure Rules.

GLOSSARY of Abbreviations and Application types

used in reports to Area Planning Committees as at 23 September 2015

AAP Area of Archaeological Potential

AODN Above Ordnance Datum, Newlyn

AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

APC1 Area 1 Planning Committee

APC2 Area 2 Planning Committee

APC3 Area 3 Planning Committee

ASC Area of Special Character

BPN Building Preservation Notice

BRE Building Research Establishment

CA Conservation Area

CPRE Council for the Protection of Rural England
DEFRA Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
1

Page 9



DETR
DCLG
DCMS
DLADPD
DMPO
DPD
DPHEH
DSSL
EA

EH
EMCG
FRA
GDPO

GPDO

HA

HSE
HMU
KCC
KCCVPS
KDD

KWT
LB
LDF
LLFA
LMIDB
LPA
LWS
MAFF
MBC
MC
MCA
MDEDPD

MGB
MKWC
MWLP
NE
NPPF
PC

PD
POS
PPG
PROW

2

Department of the Environment, Transport & the Regions
Department for Communities and Local Government
Department for Culture, the Media and Sport

Development Land Allocations Development Plan Document
Development Management Procedure Order

Development Plan Document

Director of Planning, Housing & Environmental Health
Director of Street Scene & Leisure

Environment Agency

English Heritage

East Malling Conservation Group

Flood Risk Assessment

Town & Country Planning (General Development Procedure)
Order 2015

Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 2015

Highways Agency

Health and Safety Executive

Highways Management Unit

Kent County Council

Kent County Council Vehicle Parking Standards

Kent Design (KCC) (a document dealing with housing/road
design)

Kent Wildlife Trust

Listed Building (Grade I, II* or II)

Local Development Framework

Lead Local Flood Authority

Lower Medway Internal Drainage Board

Local Planning Authority

Local Wildlife Site

Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food

Maidstone Borough Council

Medway Council (Medway Towns Unitary Authority)
Mineral Consultation Area

Managing Development and the Environment Development
Plan Document

Metropolitan Green Belt

Mid Kent Water Company

Minerals & Waste Local Plan

Natural England

National Planning Policy Framework

Parish Council

Permitted Development

Public Open Space

Planning Policy Guidance

Public Right Of Way

Page 10



SDC
SEW
SFRA

SNCI
SPAB
SPD

SPN
SSSI
SWS
TC
TCAAP
TCS
TMBC
TMBCS

TMBLP
TWBC
uco

UMIDB
WLP

AGPN/AGN
AT
CA

CAX
CNA
CR3
CR4
DEPN
DR3
DR4
EL
ELB
ELEX
FC

FL
FLX
FLEA
FOPN
GOV
HN
HSC

Sevenoaks District Council

South East Water

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (prepared as background to
the LDF)

Site of Nature Conservation Interest

Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings
Supplementary Planning Document (a statutory policy
document supplementary to the LDF)

Form of Statutory Public Notice

Site of Special Scientific Interest

Southern Water Services

Town Council

Tonbridge Town Centre Area Action Plan

Tonbridge Civic Society

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Core Strategy (part of the Local
Development Framework)

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Local Plan

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Town and Country Planning Use Classes Order 1987 (as
amended)

Upper Medway Internal Drainage Board

Waste Local Plan (KCC)

Prior Notification: Agriculture

Advertisement

Conservation Area Consent (determined by Secretary
of State if made by KCC or TMBC)
Conservation Area Consent: Extension of Time
Consultation by Neighbouring Authority

County Regulation 3 (KCC determined)

County Regulation 4

Prior Notification: Demolition

District Regulation 3

District Regulation 4

Electricity

Ecclesiastical Exemption Consultation (Listed Building)
Overhead Lines (Exemptions)

Felling Licence

Full Application

Full Application: Extension of Time

Full Application with Environmental Assessment
Prior Notification: Forestry

Consultation on Government Development
Hedgerow Removal Notice

Hazardous Substances Consent

Page 11



LB

LBX
LCA

LDE
LDP

LRD
MIN
NMA
OA
OAEA
OAX
RD
RM

TEPNS5S6/TEN
TNCA

TPOC

TRD

TWA

WAS
WG

Listed Building Consent (determined by Secretary of State if
made by KCC or TMBC)

Listed Building Consent: Extension of Time

Land Compensation Act - Certificate of Appropriate
Alternative Development

Lawful Development Certificate: Existing Use or Development
Lawful Development Certificate: Proposed Use or
Development

Listed Building Consent Reserved Details

Mineral Planning Application (KCC determined)

Non Material Amendment

Outline Application

Outline Application with Environment Assessment

Outline Application: Extension of Time

Reserved Details

Reserved Matters (redefined by Regulation from August
2006)

Prior Notification: Telecoms

Notification: Trees in Conservation Areas

Trees subject to TPO

Tree Consent Reserved Details

Transport & Works Act 1992 (determined by Secretary of
State)

Waste Disposal Planning Application (KCC determined)
Woodland Grant Scheme Application

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

Area 2 Planning Committee

Addington 22 May 2019 TM/19/01067/FL
Downs And Mereworth

Proposal: Redevelopment of the site to provide 10 x detached dwelling
houses with associated parking, turning, landscaping and
improvements to the access road

Location: Scarbutts And Winsor Works London Road Addington West
Malling Kent ME19 5AN
Go to: Recommendation

1. Description:

1.1 This planning application proposes the redevelopment of a longstanding industrial
site for 10 residential dwellings (3no. five beds and the remaining four bed units).
The dwellings are all two storey detached properties finished in a mixture of brick,
tile hanging and render. Each property is proposed to be served by a detached
double garage with two independently accessible spaces in front. A visitor parking
area containing 4 spaces is also proposed to be provided along the main access
road.

1.2 The application also proposes the re-grading and surfacing of the existing access
from the A20 to provide an improved access to serve the site. Alterations are
proposed to land levels across the site intended to mitigate against the potential
for flooding. The application also indicates a scheme of ecological and biodiversity
enhancement and management and maintenance of the trees and boundary
hedging.

1.3 Members will be aware that the site has a long history of commercial and industrial
use, primarily comprising a printers on the southern part of the land and a
workshop and garage to the north that was later changed to a metal smelter.
Since this time numerous other uses have been undertaken including
transportation yard, breakers yard, scaffolding contactor’s yard and depot for a
demolition company. These uses were mostly undertaken without the benefit of
planning permission but had become lawful over the passage of time.

1.4 Given the history of the site and the relationships between it and surrounding
buildings, a Members’ Site Inspection was undertaken (in October last year) in
advance of reporting this item so that Members could re-familiarise themselves
with the site since their last visit in 2015.

1.5 At the inspection it became apparent that the applicants had decided to clear the
site of all previous buildings. These buildings had been in situ at the time the case
officer previously visited the site and no indication had been given by the
applicants or their agents that this was scheduled to or had taken place. This
action fundamentally changed the parameters for assessing the application due to
the change from a developed site in the Green Belt to a vacant site with only some

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020
Page 13



Area 2 Planning Committee

1.6

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

areas of hardstanding remaining and this will be discussed fully in the assessment
that follows. Since this time, officers have repeatedly advised the prospective
developers via their planning agent to provide an updated supporting case in light
of this fundamental change to the site and latterly officers have advised them to
withdraw the application and reconsider options for any resubmission. None of this
advice has been taken up to date.

Most recently, we have received notification from the Planning Inspectorate that an
appeal has been lodged against non-determination of the application within the
requisite timeframe. A response has been sent advising that we consider the
provisions to lodge such an appeal do not apply in this instance because the
statutory timeframe within which to lodge such an appeal (six months from the
target date for determination) has passed. On this basis, it is considered that the
LPA can still make a determination on the application and there is no locus for the
Inspectorate to accept the appeal. If, for some reason, we are advised differently
ahead of the committee meeting taking place, our recommendation will be updated
accordingly by way of a supplementary matter.

Reason for reporting to Committee:
Due to the controversial and complex planning history of the site.
The Site:

The application site is located behind the Humphries and Parks Mitsubishi Garage
and car sales premises on the north side of London Road (A20), to the southeast
of Addington in the countryside. Access to the site is via an access road that
extends 90m to the north from the A20, between the Mitsubishi car sales yard to
the east and the residential property of Emlyn to the west. The site provides an
area of about 0.8ha and is currently vacant, with the buildings that historically
occupied the site being demolished towards the end of 2019.

The existing site falls away towards the north towards Leybourne Stream that runs
adjacent to the west and north boundaries. The main part of the site is relatively
flat with a slight slope from the south down to the north. However, the access road
to the site is relatively steep, with the level of the A20 being about 10m higher than
the level of the site proper.

The dwellings of Mayhill House and May Hill Barn lie to the southeast of the
application site. The Mitsubishi Garage and car sales premises lie further to the
south fronting the A20. An open field/meadow lies to the east, with an area of
woodland to the north and northeast. The West Malling Golf Course lies to the
northwest and north of the site. The residential property of Emlyn adjoins the
western boundary of the site adjacent to the access road. A number of other
residential properties (Nos.1-6 Greenways) are sited further to the west. A cluster
of residential properties is also located on the south side of the A20, opposite the
site access.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 14



Area 2 Planning Committee

3.4 The site is within the countryside and Metropolitan Green Belt, Zone 2/3 Flood
Risk Areas and a Water Gathering Area. The A20 is a Classified Road and an
area of Ancient Woodland lies immediately to the north. The site is also
designated as a Major Developed Site in the Green Belt - M1 (b) and Other
Employment Land - E2 (0) in the Council’s Development Plan.

4. Planning History (relevant):

TM/06/02828/FL Refuse 19 January 2007

Demolition of existing buildings and structures and construction of a 4274 sqm
self-storage building and external areas; upgrade of access road

TM/07/01426/FL Approved 18 July 2007

Change of use of land to depot for demolition company with associated

demolition of existing industrial buildings and redevelop with new workshop and
office buildings. Installation of vehicle wash facility and associated hard surfacing

and parking

TM/14/01688/FL Refuse 10 July 2015
Enforcement Notice 9 May 2016
Upheld

Change of use of land to depot for demolition company with associated

demolition of existing industrial buildings and redevelop with new workshop and
office buildings. Installation of vehicle wash facility and associated hard surfacing

and parking

5. Consultees:

DPHEH: In the interests of completeness, and for ease of information, full
representations received from KCC (H+T), the EA and KCC (Economic
Development) are reproduced in full at annexes 1,2 and 3 respectively. As such,
these are not reproduced or summarised within the report itself. All other
representations received are summarised below as follows:

5.1 PC: Object to the above proposal. Members feel that proposal by virtue of the size

and proposed number of dwellings constitutes inappropriate development and
overcrowding of this green belt site. Members do not feel that the village needs

more large dwellings and have concerns about the impact of the run-off from these
properties on the drainage and sewers in this location. Members also do not agree

that the developer should not make any S106 contributions to the village and feel
that if T&’MBC are mindful to grant permission that an allowance should be made
for this and in particular for local leisure facilities. Members also have concerns

about the access to the site and the increase of vehicle movements on to this busy

stretch of the A20. In conclusion Members disagree with the conclusion that
Special Very Circumstances exist for planning permission to be granted.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 15



Area 2 Planning Committee

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

KCC (LLFA): Kent County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority have reviewed
the Flood Risk Assessment and supporting drainage strategy and have no
objection in principle to the proposed development subject to conditions.

KCC (Heritage): The site of the application lies in an area of broad potential for
prehistoric and later remains. The site lies on Head deposits close to a stream-
line. Such areas would have been favourable for prehistoric and later occupation.
Prehistoric, Roman and Medieval artefacts have been located in the surrounding
fields and the A20 routeway may have been use from the Prehistoric Period
onwards. In view of this potential, | recommend that any permission be subject to a
condition requiring an archaeological investigation to be undertaken.

Southern Water: No objections subject to a condition ensuring that there is no
building works over the public sewer that crosses the site.

Environmental Protection: No objection subject to conditions relating to ground
contamination.

Private Reps: 10 + site + press notice/4S/1X/3R.

Objections received are summarised as follows:

e Impact on outlook and privacy as house roofs will be level with the ground floor
of houses to the south.

e Development inappropriate in the Metropolitan Green Belt as it would not
accord with policy.

e Should be limited to a maximum of 5 houses.

e Business premises are situated at a higher level and therefore more likely to
cause a disturbance.

¢ Residential development will put pressure for restrictions on existing
businesses that will adversely impact their operations that operate 24 hours.

e Pressure on infrastructure
¢ Impact on wildlife on the adjacent land.

Comments in support are summarised below:

e Welcome development as the site is currently unsightly.

e Area predominantly residential and the development is more appropriate than
previous industrial uses.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 16



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

e Residential use would remove large, slow moving vehicles from the A20 at this
point.

e Decontamination will have a positive effect on the surrounding nature and
protect the stream that flows along the boundary.

Determining Issues:

Background and preliminary matters:

The site has a long history of commercial and industrial use with a workshop and
garage erected on the site in the early 1960s and laying of concrete for parking in
1977. The southern building remained in general industrial use as a printing works
(known as “Scarbutts”) until its closure.

Planning permissions were also granted for a replacement building for storage of
commercial vehicles and plant spares in 1982, erection of an office building to
replace a temporary building in 1982 and erection of a replacement industrial
building for repair and sale of commercial vehicles in 1984. These permissions do
not appear to have been implemented though.

A steel framed building used as a furnace for the recovery of aluminium was
erected in 1990 along with a change of use of the land to B4(c) (now B2 General
Industry) which appears to be the last lawful use of the northern part of the site.

The northern part of the site was also most recently used (unlawfully) as a
demolition contractor's depot. Permission was refused for this retrospective
change of use in 2015 with the subsequent enforcement notice upheld on appeal
the following year. In upholding the notice the Inspector noted the issues with
regard the operation of the site as being its use 6 days a week from 6am to 10pm,
noise from the operation, issues regarding the laboured process of HGV
movements from the steep access to the site and turning onto the A20 and also
concerns as to pollution of the nearby watercourse, of a major aquifer under the
site, and pollution arising from fires on the site.

The site is now currently vacant, having been cleared of all buildings last year, with
only areas of hardstanding now remaining in situ. It is on this basis that the
current planning application before Members must now be assessed.

Principle of development:

6.6 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that

applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF at
paragraph 12 sets out that it:

“does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 17



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.7

6.8

6.9

for decision making. Proposed development that accords with an up-to-date Local
Plan should be approved, and proposed development that conflicts should be
refused unless other material considerations indicate otherwise”.

In the absence of a five year housing land supply, the presumption in favour of
sustainable development applies. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that for
decision making this means:

(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development
plan without delay; or

(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out of date, granting planning
permission unless:

i. the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a
whole.

The site lies outside any defined settlement boundary and on land defined as
countryside. Policy CP14 of the TMBCS requires that in the countryside
development will be restricted to certain, stipulated, forms of development,
including (inter alia) the redevelopment of the defined Major Developed Sites in
the Green Belt which improves visual appearance, enhances openness and
improves sustainability (listed as policy CP14 (f)). The assessment concerning the
caveats included within this requirement is set out in detail below and, briefly, the
development proposed is not considered to accord with the requirements of the
policy in respect of enhancing openness but in any event in the absence of a five
year housing land supply, policy CP14 is considered to be out of date and
substantially less weight should be afforded to it as a result. This reflects previous
decisions made by the Authority since we have no longer been able to
demonstrate a five year housing land supply, supported by various appeal
decisions which Members will be aware of.

The site also falls to be assessed under policy E2 of the DLA DPD. This states
that whilst not safeguarded for employment use, their loss for other purposes
would need to pass a series of strict tests. It states that such areas are considered
to be suitable for continued employment use subject to certain caveats and that
proposals for uses other than General Industrial (B2), Business Use (B1) or
Storage and Distribution uses will not be permitted unless the following
requirements are met:

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 18



Area 2 Planning Committee

(1) proposals must be able to demonstrate no significant adverse impact on the
guality and quantity of employment land supply in the market area;

(2) applicants must demonstrate that they have actively marketed the site for
employment purposes on realistic terms and for a reasonable period, including
consideration of sub-dividing a larger site;

(3) applicants must be able to demonstrate that continued use or redevelopment
of the existing buildings for employment purposes is not viable; and Any proposal
that is permitted having regard to the above requirements must be able to
demonstrate that the amenity benefits of redevelopment outweigh the benefits of
retaining the site in employment use.

6.10 This approach is supported by paragraph 80 of the NPPF that states that planning

6.11

6.12

6.13

policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can
invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business
needs and wider opportunities for development.

In support of the application the applicants have provided evidence regarding the
viability and suitability of the site in accordance with the three tests set out in
Policy E2 for ongoing business use. The evidence shows that the site has been
marketed with little or no interest and that there are other sites readily available in
the locality. The evidence also sets out that the costs of redeveloping the site
make it unviable to retain the existing use. On this basis, it is considered in
principle that the development accords with the three requirements of Policy E2.

As such, it is necessary to turn to the requirements of paragraph 11 (d) and for the
purposes of determining this application, the restrictive policies referred to in
paragraph 11 (d) (i) include those relating to development within the Green Belt
and areas of flood risk. It is therefore necessary to firstly establish whether the
application of those policies in respect of this scheme indicate any clear reason for
refusing planning permission.

Development in the Green Belt:

The site is allocated by Policy M1 of the DLA DPD as a Major Developed Site in
the Green Belt. This policy provides for the redevelopment of such sites if the
development accords with each of the six listed criteria, as follows:

(1) it does not lead to any greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and
the purposes of including land within it;

(2) it leads to an overall improvement in the environment, does not harm the
landscape setting, includes provision for the maintenance of landscaped areas
and appropriately integrates with its surroundings;

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 19



Area 2 Planning Committee

(3) any changes to traffic generated can be satisfactorily accommodated without
conflict with rural amenity and without prejudice to highway safety and if possible
bring beneficial changes;

(4) it does not exceed the height of existing buildings;

(5) for infill development, it does not result in an extension to the currently
developed extent of the site; and

(6) for redevelopment, the proposed coverage of the site by buildings (i.e. the
footprint) is no larger than the ground floor extent of the original buildings unless
occupying a larger footprint would achieve a reduction in height which would
benefit visual amenity and reduce impact on the wider Green Belt.

There is also an additional requirement that new residential development
proposed must demonstrate the following:

(1) uses appropriate to the Green Belt cannot be achieved on the site and the site
cannot continue to be used for its existing purpose (provided the existing use is
not, in itself, detrimental to the purposes of the Green Belt); or

(2) residential redevelopment or reuse of the site will bring significant
environmental benefits.

6.14 Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. “Very special circumstances” will not exist unless the potential
harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm
resulting from the proposal is clearly outweighed by other considerations.

6.15 Paragraph 145 of the NPPF sets out that local planning authorities should regard
the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions to
this, relevant to this application, are:

e) limited infilling in villages;

g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed
land, whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings),
which would:

e not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or

e not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the
development would reuse previously developed land and contribute to meeting
an identified affordable housing need within the area of the local planning
authority.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020
Page 20



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

The adopted policy set out within the DPD is broadly consistent with the relevant
paragraphs contained within the Framework although it is noted that it does set out
a number of additional parameters to meet which go above and beyond the
requirements of the Framework. For that reason, the weight to be afforded to
policy M1 is reduced. In any event, given that there are no buildings now
remaining on site, it is not possible to accord with a number of the express
requirements of the policy and as such the proposed development is contrary to
this policy.

In terms of the restrictive policies within the Framework pertaining to development
within the Green Belt, it is not considered that the site can reasonably be said to lie
within the village of Addington. That is a matter of planning judgement and appeal
decisions in the immediate vicinity support this position. For example, when
considering the nearby Mayhill Bungalow appeal (application TM/18/02608/FL
refers) the Inspector, in dismissing the proposed development, stated that the area
had ‘dispersed pockets of development that do not comprise a cohesive
settlement in visual terms’. As such, the exception to inappropriate development
provided by paragraph 145(e) of the NPPF does not apply.

Although the buildings previously occupying the site have been demolished, areas
of hardstanding do remain across the site and as such the site continues to fall
within the definition of previously developed land as set out at Annexe 2 of the
NPPF. Paragraph 145(qg) therefore falls to be applied but it is the condition of the
site as it currently stands that the development must be judged against, rather
than the historic situation.

There can be no doubt that the amount, footprint and scale of the development
proposed by this application would have a greater impact on openness and as
such the exception provided by paragraph 145 (g) cannot apply either. The
development therefore constitutes inappropriate development which is harmful by
definition. Moreover, this also results in material harm to openness in spatial and
visual terms. Specifically, the residential development proposed would lead to a
taller built form spread over a wider area of the site. This harm taken in totality
(along with any other planning harm identified during the course of assessment)
must be clearly outweighed by very special circumstances before planning
permission can be granted.

In this instance, the applicant has sought to put forward a case of very special
circumstances for the development and the need to clear the site of the existing
buildings. In summary, this case centres on the decontamination of the site,
prevention of flooding, ecological benefits and a reduction in traffic movements
onto the A20 as a result of the cessation of the historic industrial use.

Members will be aware that the Courts have held that the existence of very special
circumstances must go beyond straightforward compliance with the normal
development management policy requirements. These are addressed as follows:

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 21



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

It is accepted that the site is heavily contaminated due to the nature of the
previous industrial uses that have taken place on the site. Paragraph 178 of the
NPPF requires that a site is suitable for its end use taking account of ground
conditions and any risks arising from land instability and contamination. The
development proposed has been supported by a detailed geo-technical report that
indicates the level of remediation required on site to accord with the requirements
of paragraph 178. The submitted report goes further detailing enhancements that
would arise in the area in general as a result of the decontamination of the site
including the removal of pollution sources for the adjacent watercourse and also
the removal of a source of contaminants that could enter groundwater. However,
the decontamination of the site is a consequence of the proposed development
that is expressly required to make the residential development acceptable in
planning terms and this cannot therefore, in my view, amount to a very special
circumstance.

Similarly, specific and detailed policies require development taking place in areas
of flood risk to mitigate the effects of flooding. It is accepted that the proposed
development has been designed to enable management of the watercourse to the
rear of the site and also give greater controls on surface water runoff towards this
watercourse and that this approach has been set out as a result of a detailed
Flood Risk Assessment. The development would provide enhancements to the
flood risk in the area as a whole by proposing management of the watercourse
which, by maintaining the river channel would lower the overall water level and
thus lower the overall flood risk in the area.

Flooding from surface water would also be reduced as a result of the
development. At present surface water is free to flow down the slope from the
A20, across the site and into the watercourse leading to surface water flooding to
the east of the site. The installation of a formal drainage system would be required
as part of the development and in this instance the scheme proposes a holding
tank under the visitor parking area which would slow the flow of water across the
site to reduce peak runoff. The scheme is in full accordance with Policy CP10 but
could not be considered a very special circumstance as it is only resulting in a
policy compliant development.

The site at present has very low ecological value as a result of its previous uses
and the general lack of vegetation within the site. The residential development
proposed proposes the provision of numerous environmental enhancements
across the site in the form of additional planting, bird and bat boxes and access
holes for small mammals in the fences. The works also enable the creation of an
ecological buffer strip along the southern bank of the stream which can be
managed to open the area up as a habitat water voles and reptiles such as grass
snake and lizards. The development would also bring about the overall
enhancements by removing the industrial use from the area in relation to the
removal of lighting, noise, activity etc. associated with the previous use of the site,
in particular close to the river bank. This level of provision comfortably meets the

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 22



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

requirements of Policy NE3 of the MDE DPD that seeks for development to
mitigate their impacts on the loss of habitats and the retention of wildlife corridors.

This level of provision is also in line with the general requirements of paragraph
170 of the NPPF which states that planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by inter alia:

(d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and
future pressures;

(f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and
unstable land, where appropriate.

The NPPF goes into greater detail on net gains for biodiversity in paragraph 175
(d) which states that ‘development whose primary objective is to conserve or
enhance biodiversity should be supported; while opportunities to incorporate
biodiversity improvements in and around developments should be encouraged,
especially where this can secure measurable net gains for biodiversity’. (my
emphasis).

In this instance it is considered that whilst the development complies with the
requirements of Policy NE3 and paragraph 170 of the NPPF it does not have the
primary objective of conserving or enhancing biodiversity as set out in paragraph
175(d). On this basis the ecological enhancements being provided would only be
considered compliant with policy and would therefore not be viewed as a very
special circumstance clearly outweighing identified harm.

| accept that the industrial uses of the site have previously led to complaints
regarding excessive noise, pollution from bonfires and impacts on traffic flows on
the A20 due to the nature of slope of the access and the effect this has on the
movement of HGVs turning from the site onto the main carriageway. Whilst the
nature of poor site management would not form a planning consideration the
benefits of the loss of HGV movements and the industrial use in this rural area do.
The fact that the existing use of the site is an unfettered B2 use that by definition
means that there is no ability to control HGV movements does not make the loss
of HGV movements and the industrial use a very special circumstance.

It is my judgement, these are all aspects which are normal requirements of
planning policy in assessing any development proposals and therefore are not
“very special” in terms of clearly outweighing the identified harm to the Green Belt.
They are not capable of amounting to, or contributing to a cumulative case, of very
special circumstances; they are simply matters that are required of all good quality
development across the Borough.

As such, the relevant restrictive policies of the Framework (and indeed the
relevant development plan policies insofar as they remain consistent with those

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 23



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

policies) provide a clear reason for refusal (being the correct test set out in
paragraph 11 (d) (i)). The presumption in favour of sustainable development does
not therefore re-emerge to be applied here.

Flood risk and impact:

The site is partially located within flood zones 2 and 3 and due to this adopted
polices generally seek to restrict development in such areas unless it can be
shown that the development would not be at risk nor would it increase flooding
elsewhere. Policy CP10 of the TMBCS states that within the floodplain
development should first seek to make use of areas at no or low risk to flooding
before areas at higher risk, where this is possible and compatible with other
polices aimed at achieving a sustainable pattern of development. Similarly,
paragraph 155 of the NPPF sets out that inappropriate development in areas at
risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at
highest risk (whether existing or future).

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy concludes that the
site is located within an area with a low risk of groundwater flooding and very low
risk of surface water flooding. There is a very small area of high risk of flooding on
the northern site boundary but this will not pose a risk as there will not be any
development on these areas. Flood attenuation measures in the form of
underground water storage is proposed as part of the drainage strategy which
would further minimise the potential for increased surface water flooding both on-
site and outside the site as a result of the development.

Paragraph 163 of the NPPF requires that when determining applications, local
planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. The
nature of the development is such that it will enable the management of Leybourne
Stream as part of the environmental and ecological enhancements. The
management of the stream would enable regular maintenance of the watercourse
which would ensure that the channel is kept clear. This in turn would reduce the
potential for off-site flooding to the east of the site to the benefit of the area in
general.

The restrictive policies contained within the Framework in respect of flood risk
therefore do not provide a clear reason for refusal in their own right but this does
not alter the position already reached on the application of the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. The remainder of the assessment that follows
reflects that.

Impact on visual amenities:

Policy CP1 of the TMBCS requires all new development to result in a high quality
sustainable environment. Policies CP24 of the TMBCS and SQ1 of the MDE DPD
are the most relevant design policies and require development to be well designed
and through its scale, density, layout, siting, character and appearance respect the

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 24



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

site and its surroundings. Development should also protect, conserve and where
possible enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the area, including its
setting in relation to the pattern of the settlement, roads and surrounding
landscape.

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF sets out that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.

Paragraph 130 is also material and sets out that permission should be refused for
development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions, taking into
account any local design standards or style guides in plans or supplementary
planning documents. Conversely, where the design of a development accords with
clear expectations in plan policies, design should not be used by the decision-
maker as a valid reason to object to development.

The adopted development plan policies generally conform to the requirements of
the NPPF in these respects.

The dwellings are proposed to be set over two storeys and are of a traditional
design. The dwellings are proposed to be finished in brick, render and tile hanging
under tiled roofs. Parking is to be provided within detached double garages
designed to complement the appearance of the dwellings. The buildings would
not appear in any way out of keeping with the prevailing character of the locality in

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 25



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.41

6.42

6.43

terms of form, design or use of materials. | also note that the existing established
planting to the site boundaries is to be retained with further enhancements
proposed to ensure that the general character of the area is retained. The building
works are to be set away from the existing mature trees on the boundary of the
site. The details of the landscaping can be sought by condition. | am therefore of
the view that the design of the dwellings proposed would be more in keeping with
the surrounding development over that which historically occupied the site. The
design of the buildings accords with the adopted and national policy in these
respects.

Impact on residential amenity:

The layout of the site is such that the development would not lead to any privacy
or overlooking issues for neighbouring dwellings. The relationships between the
proposed houses and the existing surrounding dwellings to the west and south are
such that there would be no direct views between properties. The site is set at a
considerably lower level than the surroundings, with the proposed dwellings set at
least 25m from the nearest existing neighbouring properties. The site layout is
such that the new properties would also not be positioned directly in line with the
existing properties to further reduce the potential for any loss of amenity to the
surrounding houses.

Similarly the positioning of new residential units behind two existing business
premises would not result in a conflict between the uses. It is not considered that
the proposed dwellings would be unacceptably impacted upon by noise from either
neighbouring business premises to the south due to the considerable separation
distances proposed. The submitted acoustic report indicates that the distances
involved are such that the proposed dwellings would not require mitigation over
and above that normally sought under building regulations. On this basis it is
considered that there are no objections to residential development on the grounds
of noise. It is noted that there are floodlights at the Humphries and Parks site that
face towards the application site. The potential for these to have an adverse
impact on the amenity of the new dwellings has been assessed as part of the
submission. This assessment has concluded that the floodlight angles combined
with the difference in land levels and the separation distances involved would
ensure that there would be no adverse impact on amenity to the proposed
properties.

The existing tree band along the southern boundary of the site has been assessed
and it is considered that these trees would not be at risk of removal due as a result
of them overshadowing the new development. The natural shape of these trees
when combined with the substantial size of the proposed plots would ensure that
dappled light would filter through the canopy to the proposed dwellings ensuring
that there would not be a noticeable shading effect that would lead to pressure to
remove the trees.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 26



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.44

6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

Highway safety and parking provision:

The relevant development plan policy in relation to highway safety and parking is
contained within Policy SQ8 of the MDE DPD. This states that before proposals for
development are permitted, they will need to demonstrate that any necessary
transport infrastructure, the need for which arises wholly or substantially from the
development, is in place or is certain to be provided.

Paragraphs 109 and 110 of the NPPF are also material and set out that
development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative
impacts on the road network would be severe; and that developments should
create places that are safe, secure and attractive avoiding conflict between users.
Again, there is general conformity between the requirements of adopted policy and
the NPPF in these respects.

The proposal seeks to gain access to the site from the A20 using a re-graded and
improved access along the route of the existing. Works are proposed to the
western boundary hedge to enable improved vision splays. This improvement
plus the removal of the use of the access by commercial vehicles is considered to
be a betterment in highway safety terms.

The provision of at least two parking spaces plus a double garage to serve each
new dwelling along with the provision of 5 visitor parking bays would exceed the
requirements set out in KHS IGN3: Residential Parking. The site layout indicates
the provision of electric car charging points for each dwelling. This is welcomed
and is considered to be fully in line with the requirements of paragraph 110 (e) of
the NPPF which requires developments to be designed to enable charging of plug-
in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, accessible and convenient
locations. These charging points can be controlled by condition.

As such, there are no justifiable grounds to resist the development on grounds of
highway safety or parking provision when considering the proposal against
adopted and national policy requirements.

Potential land contamination:

Paragraph 170(f) of the NPPF states that planning decisions should contribute to
and enhance the natural and local environment by ‘remediating and mitigating
despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable land, where
appropriate.” The site is derelict and contaminated as a result of its previous
industrial use, with the application proposing appropriate remediation to ensure
that the land is suitable for the residential use. In this respect the application fully
accords with paragraph 170 of the NPPF.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 27



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.50

6.51

6.52

6.53

6.54

Paragraph 178 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that:

a) a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground conditions and
any risks arising from land instability and contamination. This includes risks arising
from natural hazards or former activities such as mining, and any proposals for
mitigation including land remediation (as well as potential impacts on the natural
environment arising from that remediation);

b) after remediation, as a minimum, land should not be capable of being
determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990; and

c) adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is
available to inform these assessments.

Paragraph 179 makes clear that where a site is affected by contamination or land
stability issues, responsibility for securing a safe development rests with the
developer and/or landowner

The site was previously occupied by industrial uses and the submitted
contamination report does state that numerous contaminants are present. A
detailed plan for the remediation of the site has been submitted with the
application which provides adequate detail to prove that the site can be made
suitable for the end use and these works can be controlled through the use of
appropriate planning conditions.

Environmental Impacts:

The site is located on a principal aquifer and therefore the construction of the
development has the opportunity to lead to the pollution of controlled waters.
Policy SQ5 of the MDE DPD seeks to ensure that development would not
compromise the quality and supply of water. Paragraph 170 of the NPPF states
that ‘planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural
and local environment by (inter alia):

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of sail,
air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever
possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water
guality, taking into account relevant information such as river basin management
plans.

The development has been subject to consultation with the EA who are satisfied
that through the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems the development will not
lead to the contamination of groundwater.

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 28



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.55

6.56

6.57

6.58

6.59

6.60

Given the previous use of the site the applicant has proposed a series of
ecological enhancements to encourage wildlife into the area in the shape of
nesting boxes for birds and bats; hedgehog friendly fences and an ecological
buffer strip along the southern bank of the Leybourne Stream. The development is
therefore considered to utilise the types of measures to meet the requirements of
paragraph 175 of the NPPF and Policy NE3 of the MDE DPD which encourage
development that incorporates biodiversity improvements.

Planning obligations:

Section 1 of Policy CP25 of the TMBCS requires development proposals to either
incorporate the infrastructure required as a result of the scheme or make provision
for financial contributions. Paragraph 54 of the NPPF requires local planning
authorities to consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be
made acceptable through the use of conditions or planning Obligations should only
be sought where they are necessary to make the development acceptable in
planning terms; directly related to the development; and fairly and reasonably
related in scale and kind to the development. Similarly paragraph 55 states that
planning conditions should only be imposed where they are necessary, relevant to
planning and to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and
reasonable in all other respects.

Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations also sets out that a planning obligation may
only constitute a reason for granting planning permission for the development if
the obligation is:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Policy OS3 of the MDE DPD requires all developments of 5 units or more (net) to
provide an open space provision in line with Policy Annex OS3. Given the size of
the development financial contributions of a total of £46,530 for offsite provision for
parks and gardens, outdoor sports facilities and children’s and young people’s play
areas in the vicinity of the site are required and these can be secured by S106
agreement.

Similarly, KCC (Economic Development) seeks contributions of £33,240 towards
Primary School provision at Leybourne Chase School; £41,150 towards
Secondary School expansion at The Malling School and £480.16 towards
additional bookstock for the new borrowers at West Malling Library. These
contributions can also be ensured by S106 agreement.

Although Policy CP17 states that in rural areas developments of 5 or more
dwellings should provide affordable housing this policy has been superseded by

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 29



Area 2 Planning Committee

6.61

6.62

7.1

National Planning Practice Guidance which has raised the threshold of
development to more than 10 units. As such this development is not large enough
to trigger the requirement.

Had the development been acceptable in all other respects, these matters could
have been appropriately secured by planning obligation.

Planning balance and overall conclusions:

The development constitutes inappropriate development within the Green Belt
which is harmful by definition. Furthermore, the nature and scale of the
development when considered alongside the current physical condition of the site
which is absent any built development with the exception of remaining areas of
hardstanding would reduce openness in spatial and visual terms. It is not
considered that any very special circumstances — whether taken individually or
cumulatively — have been demonstrated that would clearly outweigh the harm
identified to the Green Belt in this case. As such, the application of policies
contained within the Framework insofar as they relate to development in the Green
belt provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed.

Recommendation:
Refuse planning permission for the following reason:

The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt where there is a strong
presumption against inappropriate development, as defined in the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019). The development constitutes inappropriate
development within the Green Belt which is substantially harmful by definition.
Furthermore, the development would cause material harm to openness by virtue of
the amount of built form across the site. No very special circumstances have been
demonstrated that clearly outweigh the degree of harm to the Metropolitan Green
Belt and the development is therefore contrary to paragraphs 143 to 145 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and Policy CP3 of the Tonbridge and
Malling Borough Core Strategy 2007 and Policy M1 of the Tonbridge and Malling
Development Land Allocations Development Plan Document 2010

Contact: Robin Gilbert

Part 1 Public 4 November 2020

Page 30



Annex 1: KCC Highways and Transportation Comments

Highways and Transportation
Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council Ashford Highway Depot
Development Control 4 Javelin Way
Gibson Building Ashford
Gibson Drive Tel gﬂ%ﬁ%mi
Kings Hill :
West Malling, Kent Date: 10 June 2019
ME18 4LZ

Application - TMMS/01067/FL
Location - Scarbutts London Road Addington West Malling Kent ME13 5AN

Froposal - Redevelopment of the site to provide 10 x detached dwelling houses with
associated parking, tuming, landscaping and improvements to the access
road

Robin

Thank you for inviting me to comment on this application. | would like firstly, if | may, to
undertake a critique of the Transport Statement submitted: -

» 1.8 point 7 - '"KCC's comments on the propesal.’ — it is unclear where or what these are. |
am unaware that KCC have previously commented on this proposal.

» Paragraph 3.1 - The footway will be at the same level as the road, or up to S0mm higher to
permit larger vehicles to pas each other. This design is used throughout Kings Hill." | do
not agree that the latter sentence, used in a sweeping and unconditional way, is correct.

» Paragraph 3.4 - 'KCC support tandem parking.” KCC allows limited amounts of tandem
parking, often with other compensatory on street visitor type parking and subject to its
considered impact. It does not unconditionally support tandem parking. This is not included
in IGN3.

» There is a typographical error in Table 4.1, AM Out vehicle flow.

* Unless | am mistaken, Table 4.3 in Appendix 4 is not regarding trip rates as described in the
title, but the figures are person and vehicle flows.

»  Similarly, Appendix T is incorrect, misleading and confusing both in itself and in relation to
its reference in the body of the report.

| am sorry if this seems rather picky but following and checking a report that has errors and
lacks a logical sequence is time consuming and frustrating.

The application

The application is for 10 units and it is agreed that the level of traffic generated from a
residential development of this scale could not sustainably by consitrued to constitute a severe
impact onto the highway network. | mote from 1.2 of the Transport Statement that the access
road is to remain private. In order to serve the development, refuse vehicles will need to
access the site and am appropriate road layout which facilitates tuming for forward egress has
been proposed. | would recommend however that immediately south of the visitor car parking

Page 31



spaces proposed on drawing BD5-1586-F0O5 (FEB '18) that a 5.5m wide passing bay is
included to facilitate passing on the oceasions that it is needed rather than potentially having to
reverse blind up a 1:10 gradient (paragraph 1.14 of the TA) and risk the need for reversing out
cnto the sirategic A20 London Road. The extent of car parking space proposad is considered
to be in accordance with standards and adequate. Visibility from this existing access is also
considered to be adequate.

| write to confirm on behalf of this authority that | have no objection to this application subject to
the following conditions: -

* Swubmission of a Construction Management Plan for approval before the commencement of
any development on site.
Frovision of measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the highway.
FProvision and permanent retention of the vehicle parking spaces andfor garages shown on
the submitted plans prior to the use of the site commencing.

* Provision and permanent retenftion of the vehicle loading/unloading and turning facilities
shown on the submitted plans prior to the use of the site commencing.

* Provision and permanent retenftion of the cycle parking facilities shown on the submitted
plans prior to the use of the site commencing.

* Completion and maintenance of the access road prior to the use of the site commencing.

Planning permissicn does not convey any approval for works within the highway for which a
statutory licence must be obtained. Applicants should contact Kent County Council - Highways
and Transportation (web: www.kent.gov.ukiroads_and_transport.aspx or telephome: 03000
418181) in order to obftain the necessary Application Pack.

INFORMATIVE: It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure |, before the dewvelopment
hereby approved is commenced, that all necessary highway approvals and consents where
required are cbtained and that the limits of highway boundary are clearly established in onrder to
avoid any enforcement action being taken by the Highway Authority.

Across the county there are pieces of land next to private homes and gardens that do not look
like roads or pavements but are actually part of the road. This is called "highway land’. Some of
this land is owned by The Kent County Council (KCC) whilst some are owned by third party
owners. [mespective of the ownership, this land may hawve "highway rights’ over the topsoil.
Information about how to clarify the highway boundary can be found at

https:\fwww. kent.gov. uk/roads-and-travel'what-we-look-after'highway-land/highway-boundary-e

nguiries

The applizant must also ensure that the detsils shown on the approved plans agrees in
every aspect with those approved under such legislation and common law. It is therefore
important for the applicant to contact KCC Highways and Transportation to progress this aspect

of the works prior to commencement on site.

‘fours faithfully

Terry Drury
Senior Development Planner

Page 32



Kent

County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Highways and Transportation

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council Ashford Highway Depot
Development Control 4 Javelin Way

Gibson Building Aghford

Gibson Drive TH24 5AD

Tel: 03000 418181

Kings Hill
. Date: 5 August 2019

West Malling, Kent
ME18 4L.Z

App. Ref. TMM9/01067/FL
Location Scarbutts London Road Addington West Malling Kent ME19 5AN

Proposal Redevelopment of the site to provide 10 x detached dwelling houses with
associated parking, turning, landscaping and improvements to the access road

Robin

Thank you for reconsulting me regarding this application. | am grateful for the addition of a
passing bay on the revised proposed site plan. | wriite to confirm on behalf of this authority that
| have no objection to this application subject to the conditions recommended previously: -

* Submission of a Construction Management Plan for approval before the
commencement of any development on site.

* Provision of measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the highway.

* Provision and permanent retention of the vehicle parking spaces and/or garages shown
an the submitted plans prior to the use of the site commencing.

« Provision and permanent retention of the vehicle loading/unloading and turning facilities
shown on the submitted plans prior to the use of the site commencing.

« Provision and permanent retention of the cycle parking facilities shown on the submitted
plans prior to the use of the site commencing.

+« Completion and maintenance of the access road prior to the use of the site
commencing.

Planning permission does not convey any approval for works within the highway for which a
statutory licence must he obtained. Applicants should contact Kent County Council — Highways
and Transportation (webh: www kent.gov ukiroads_and_transport.aspx or telephone: 03000
418181) in order to ohtain the necessary Application Pack.

If | can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Page 33



INFORMATIVE: It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure , before the development
hereby approved is commenced, that all necessary highway approvals and consents where
required are obtained and that the limits of highway boundary are clearly established in order to
avoid any enforcement action being taken by the Highway Authority.

Across the county there are pieces of land next to private homes and gardens that do not look
like roads or pavements but are actually part of the road. This is called ‘highway land’. Some of

this land is owned by The Kent County Council (KCC) whilst some are owned by third party
owners. Imespective of the ownership, this land may have ‘highway rights’ over the topsoil.

Information about how to clarify the highway boundary can be found at
hitps:/fwenw kent gov. ukiroads-and-travel/what-we-look-afterfhighway-land/highway-boundary-e
nouiries

The applicant must also ensure that the details shown on the approved plans agree in
every aspect with those approved under such legislation and common law. It is therefore
important for the applicant to contact KCC Highways and Transportation to progress this aspect
of the works prior to commencement on site.

Yours faithfully

Terry Drury
Senior Development Planner

Page 34



Annex 2: Environment Agency Comments

creating a better place Environment
W Agency

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council Cur ref: KT/2019/125738/01-L01
Development Control Your ref; 19/01067/FL

Gibson Building Gibson Drive

Kings Hill Date: 19 June 2019

West Malling

ME19 4LZ

Dear SirffMadam

Redevelopment of the site to provide 10 x detached dwelling houses with
associated parking, turning, landscaping and improvements to the access
road

Scarbutts, London Road, Addington, West Malling Kent ME19 5AN

Thank you for consulting the Environment Agency on the above. We do not have any
objections to the planning application provided the following conditions are included
on any planning permission granted. Without these conditions, the proposed
development on this site poses an unacceptable risk to the environment and we
would object to the application.

Drainage

We note that surface water drainage will be directed fo the local watercourse via
Sustainable Drainage Systems features and that infiltration drainage has been ruled
out on the grounds of contamination in the soils. As no infiliration drainage is
proposed we have no objections on groundwater protection grounds. If there is a
change proposed at a later stage we would of course have concems given the
reported ground contamination.

We have no comments regarding foul drainage as the proposal is to connect to the
existing mains sewer.

Land Contamination
We consider that planning permission could be granted to the proposed
development as submitted if the following planning conditions are included:

Condition
Mo development approved by this planning permission shall take place until a
remediation strategy that includes the following components to deal with the risks
associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in
writing, by the local planning authonty:

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

« all previous uses

Environment Agency
Orehard Howse Endeawour Park, London Road. Addington, West Malling. Kent, ME12 55H ™y s,
Customer services line: 03708 508 5068 8 J 0

Email: enguiniesenvirgnment-agency.gov uk -
. o uk/environment-agency N

Page 35



potential contaminants associated with those uses

a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and recepftors
potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.

A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those
off site.

3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred
fo in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy
qiving full details of the remediation measures required and how they are to
he underiaken.

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are
complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of
poliutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes o these components require the express written consent of the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

pa® = -

Condition

Mo occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take place until a
verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the approved
remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to
and approved, in writing, by the local planning authorty. The report shall include
results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved
verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation critena have been met. It
shall also include any plan (a “long-term monitoring and maintenance plan®) for
longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for
contingency action, as identified in the verification plan. The long-term monitaring
and maintenance plan shall be implemented as approved.

Reason

To ensure development complies with the requirements of the National Planning
Folicy Framework (MPPF) in regard to screening for historic contamination that could
present unacceptable risks to controlled waters, including groundwater in the
underiying principal aquifer.

Condition

If, during development, contamination not previously idenfified is found to be present
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a
remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected
contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from the local
planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.

Reason

To ensure any contamination discovered during site work is appropriately assessed,
and if necessary, remediated in consultation with the local authority and the
Environment Agency. To ensure development complies with the NPPF in particular
to protect groundwater in the undertying aguifers from any historic contamination

Environment Agency

Orchard Howse Endeawvour Park, London Road. Addington, West Malling. Kent, METE 55H
Customer senaces ine: 03708 506 504

Email: enguinesiPenvironment-agency. gov uk

Wl gov ukfenviron ment-agency

Page 36



present on site.

Condition

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be
permitied other than with the express written consent of the local planning authority,
which may be given for those paris of the site where it has been demonstrated that
there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason
To protect groundwater in the underlying aquifers from pollution linked to
inappropriate foundation works through made or contaminated ground.

‘With respect to any proposals for piling through made ground, we would refer you to
the Environment Agency guidance document "Piling and Penetrative Ground
Improvement Methods on Land Affected by Contamination: Guidance on Pollution
Prevention". National Groundwater and Contaminated Land Cenfre Project
MCI99/73. We suggest that approval of piling methodology is further discussed with
the EA when the guidance has been utilised to design appropriate piling regimes at
the site.

‘We have reviewed the following documents:
« Gegenvironmental and Geotechnical Interpretative Report (Revision 1) [Card
Geotechnics Ltd, CG/28667, May 2019]
« Remediation Method Statement [Card Geotechnics Ltd, CG/2866TA, May
2019)

In regard to the conclusions within the Geoenvironmental and Geaotechnical
Interpretative Report, we noted that concentrations of phenol, some Polycyclic
Aromatic Hydrocarbons and Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons were elevated in the
shallow alluvium aquifer, and phenol was also elevated within the deeper Hythe
Formation principal aquifer. We agree with the report that the risk fo known potable
water supplies is low, given the absence of known groundwater abstractions in the
immediate vicinity of the site, and because the site is outside any Source Protection
fones.

However, we are still concerned at these elevated concentrations in regard fo other
environmental receptors, such as the adjacent Leybourne Stream, and we are also
concemed about the potential impacis on the groundwater in its own right. The
report has not identified a definitive source for the contamination observed in the
groundwater, indeed it speculates that the contaminant criginates from an ‘off-site
source'. The difficulty we have in accepting this conclusion is the lack of monitoring
data to make such a firm conclusion. The groundwater analysis was conducted on a
single borehole {a groundwater flow direction cannot be proved without triangulation
via 3 boreholes), and the soil sampling did not include soils beneath certain
structures present on the site at the time of the investigation (thus an on-site source
may still be found during demaolition works).

Environment Agency

Orchard Howse Endeavour Park, London Road, Addington, West Malling. Kent, ME1B 55H
Customer senaces ine: 03708 508 504

Email: ir il

wwwi.gov uklenvironment-agency

Page 37



Given the generally rural location, there are few possible locations for an off-site
source, so in terms of this development we need to be reasonably satisfied that
either the contamination is:
1. Not from an on-site source (so that we can follow up the suspected source
site to achieve suitable remediation), or
2. Is of such a low risk to groundwater that immediate attention is not required.

We therefore request that a more detalled groundwater risk assessment is provided,
to look at the potential groundwater concentrations expected to be found beyond the
site boundary at a 50 metre compliance point in the Hythe Formation principal
aquifer, and to provide further information on potential risks from shallow
groundwater o the Leybourne Stream.

The Remediafion Method Sfatement, in so far as it addresses the known soil
contamination hotspots on the development site, is acceptable. However as noted
above, the remediation strategy has been designed around an assumption that the
groundwater contamination chserved is acceptahle without providing sufficient
information to demonstrate so.

We therefore recommend that the proposed conditions listed above are not
discharged until further information on the groundwater risks is provided to address
Our concerns.

Decision notice

We require decision nofice details for this application, in order to report on our
effectiveness in influencing the planning process. Please email decision notice details
to kslplanning@environment-agency.gov.uk

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you require any further information.

Yours faithiully

Ms Laura Edwards

Planning Advisor

Direct dial 02084749079

Direct e-mail KSLPLANNING@environment-agency. aov.uk

Page 38



Annex 3: KCC Economic Development

Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Kent County Council confirms, in accordance with CIL Regulation 123, there are no more
than 4 other obligations towards these projects.

We look forward to hearing from you with details of progress on this matter.

Yours faithfully,

Allan Gilbert
Development Investment
Kent County Council

cc Coldrum Homes Ltd, ¢/o Graham Simpkin Planning, 2 The Parade, Ash Rd, Hartley,
Longfield, Kent DA3 8BG — FAO Mr Graham Simpkin
KCC Education & Communities, Invicta House
File
Appendices:

The following Appendices contains the technical details of the County Council's assessment:

1. Education assessment
2. Library requirement

Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Area 2 Planning Committee

TM/19/01067/FL
Scarbutts And Winsor Works London Road Addington West Malling Kent ME19 5AN

Redevelopment of the site to provide 10 x detached dwelling houses with associated
parking, turning, landscaping and improvements to the access road

For reference purposes only. No further copies may be made. ©Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Tonbridge and Malling
Borough Council Licence No. 100023300 2015.

\

The Roughetts

Footbr

i

Mayhill

Greenacres

==t 1nagya;1 ] iclll w _H_‘_h_"""“———___ —.
= ]
I’U:] Kasa The‘;’% n
- ¥
(]
Aayhill Fam
ix
[ —
—  H E MP 33.25
_ Page 49
Part 1 Public 4 November 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

ANY REPORTS APPEARING AFTER THIS PAGE CONTAIN EXEMPT
INFORMATION

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Development Control
	5 TM/19/01067/FL - Scarbutts and Winsor Works, London Road, Addington
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3
	Map

	7 Exclusion of Press and Public



